ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2008
9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQuire, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senat or Con Bunde

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Hollis French
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 317
"An Act elimnating the |limt on conpassionate gifts that a
| egislator or legislative enployee may solicit, accept, or
receive under the Legislative Ethics Act; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED HB 317 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 223
"An Act providing for and relating to the issuance of general
obligation bonds for the purpose of paying the cost of a
scientific crime detection |aboratory; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED SB 223 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 185
"An Act relating to sex offenders and child ki dnappers.™
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 77
"An Act prohibiting use of agency shop fees for political
contributions or expenditures."”

MOVED SB 77 QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 317

SHORT TI TLE: COVPASSI ONATE G FT EXEMPTI ON
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) COGHI LL

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2008



01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 15/ 08 (H STA, JUD

01/ 29/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 29/ 08 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

01/ 29/ 08 (H M NUTE( STA)

01/ 30/ 08 (H) STA RPT 4DP

01/ 30/ 08 (H DP: JOHNSQN, COGHI LL, DOLL, ROSES

01/ 30/ 08 (H JUD REFERRAL WAI VED

01/ 31/ 08 (H COSPONSOR('S) : ALL MEMBERS UNAN CONSENT

01/ 31/ 08 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

01/ 31/ 08 (H) VERSI ON: HB 317

02/ 01/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 01/ 08 (S) STA

02/ 01/ 08 (S STA WAIVED PUBLI C HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

02/ 07/ 08 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 223

SHORT TITLE: G O. BONDS FOR CRI ME LAB
SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 24/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 24/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 24/ 08 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 07/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 185

SHORT TITLE. SEX OFFENDER/ CHI LD KI DNAPPER REG STRATI ON
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) W ELECHOWSKI

01/ 16/ 08 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/08

01/ 16/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 07/ 08 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 77

SHORT TITLE: USI NG UNI ON DUES FOR POLI TI CAL PURPCSES
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) BUNDE

02/ 09/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 07 (S) STA

02/ 12/ 07 (S) L&C REFERRAL ADDED AFTER STA
02/ 07/ 08 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 7, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 317.

JOHN GLASS, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question about SB 223.

DEVON M TCHELL, Debt Manager

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered finance questi ons about SB 223.

SENATOR Bl LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 185.

KATHY MONFREDA, Chi ef

Crimnal Records and ldentification Bureau
Department of Public Safety

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 185.

DAVI D SCHADE, Director

Di vision of Statew de Services

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 185.

RON Tl DLER, Ser geant

Anchor age Pol i ce Departnent

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 185.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 185.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 7, 2008



CHAIR LESIL MCQU RE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:05:14 AM Senators Bunde,
McCGQuire, Geen, and Stevens were present at the call to order.

HB 317- COVPASSI ONATE G FT EXEMPTI ON

CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi derati on of HB 317.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL said HB 317 takes the $250 limt off the
annual giving for conpassionate reasons. A House nenber has a
need that spurred this legislation. A person can't sell a kidney
but one can be donated. However, there are associated costs,
including airfare and nedical procedures. This anmendnment *“cane
on the floor to actually conform to the $250 aggregate limt.”
There are safeguards, he explained. Every gift needs to be

reported, and there is still sone oversight by the legislative
counsel . Extraordinary or wong gifts wll not be allowed, but
the bill allows gifts to | egislators who have need.

9:07:45 AM

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked if “conpassionate gift” is defined in | aw
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he wasn’t sure.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said Section 26 of the Ethics Act allows gifts to
a legislator or legislative enployee to aid or confort the
recipient or a famly nenber because of a catastrophe, tragedy,
or health related energency. That should capture it. She assunes
that the dollar level was left out of the bill because the sale
of organs is not allowed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said wunder any catastrophe, the state
wants to allow sone latitude. The safeguards in place keep this
“well within accountability neasures.”

CHAIR MCGQURE said this is a remnder of how difficult it is to
find organ and tissue donors in Alaska. Sadness and tragedy can
bring about awareness. She has been told many stories in the
| ast few weeks of how difficult it is to find a nmatch.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL said he becanme an organ donor due to
Chair McCGuire’'s influence a few years ago.

9:10:45 AM

SENATOR GREEN noved HB 317 from commttee wth individual
recommendations and attached fiscal note(s). There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2008



SB 223-G O BONDS FOR CRI ME LAB

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced the consideration of SB 223, and she
said Senator Bunde offered an anmendnent during the |ast
di scussi on mandating the use of general fund dollars.

SENATOR BUNDE said it is not legal to attach a required deposit
to i ssuance of the bonds, so he will not offer the anendnent.

9:12: 25 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she had considered a simlar idea and asked
that sone general fund noney conme back into the discussion in
the finance commttee. The issue surrounds timng, and even if
the general obligation bond passes, there will be a period of
adm nistrative work, so perhaps sone general fund dollars wll
hel p nove the project forward.

JOHN GLASS, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety,
said the $4.8 mllion allocated in 2006 for the design and site
selection will run out by August if nore noney isn’'t provided.

9:13: 38 AM
SENATOR CGREEN suggested giving the finance committee the ability
torewite the bill.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if the crinme lab will be funded by 30-year
t ax- exenpt bonds wth 4 percent interest. It can be financed by
putting noney in long-term savings that earn 8 percent. How much
nmoney would have to be put into long-term savings and for how
long so that it would pay for the bonds?

DEVON M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Departnent of Revenue, said it
depends on the assunptions about returns. Cenerally the state’s
portfolios for long-term horizons, including the retirenment fund
and permanent fund, are expected to be about 8 percent. The
borrowing narket is very favorable. Treasuries of 20 and 30
years have been lower only once, so 4 percent is a reasonable
expectation. He said the state would have to set aside sonething
less than what it would borrow because of the expectation of
hi gher returns. The borrowed noney will anortize so there wll
be serial mturities throughout the 20-year |ife of the bond
issue so the outstanding principle will dimnish. “If you set
noney aside, you could spin out a portion of the principle each
year as well, and so you mght start off with a requirenent for
$95 mllion, and then that would gradually go down to zero at

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2008



the same tinme the bond has matured.” He can put a spreadsheet
together, but it is not sinple, he said.

9:17:18 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he mght not need nore information, but the
state would have to set aside $95 nillion and it could be
reduced over the 20-year period.

MR. M TCHELL said yes, or a lower static amount could be set
aside for the entire time frame, and it can becone cost neutral.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said voters may be asking about bonding when the
state has a surpl us.

9:18: 20 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he will vote against this bill even though he
is supportive of a new crine |ab. There is another way to get it
and that is with cash. If bonds are used it wll cost another
$10 million in the tinme value of noney. He has heard from people
in his district and not a single one has said they want to go
into debt when there is cash on the table. This is not the way
to get the crinme |ab. Another bill wll be another year and
another $10 mllion if the bond doesn’'t pass. If SB 223 doesn’t
pass, the adm nistration mght just pay for it. He has little

confidence that the legislature will put aside noney in savings
to achieve the arbitrage. In a few years the state will be in
deficit. The people trying to balance the budget will 1ook for

ways to do that and take the noney that was supposedly saved.

9:21: 01 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she agrees with nuch of what Senator Bunde
said, and she encourages the admnistration to consider the
general funds. There are tinmes when it neakes sense to borrow
noney, but one needs to have the discipline to pay it off. There

is over $350 million in outstanding G O debt now, and since the
state has a surplus, it just shows how human nature is. W want
what we want. She will support the bill because she believes in

the crine lab. It is critical for the state to house the DNA and
ot her evidence of very serious crinmes. The current crinme lab is
a disaster waiting to happen, she opined.

9:22:28 AM
SENATOR STEVENS noved SB 223 from committee wth individual
recomendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

SENATOR BUNDE obj ect ed.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 7, 2008



A roll <call vote was called. Senators MQ@ire, Geen, and
Stevens voted yes, and Senator Bunde voted no. Therefore, SB 223
passed out of conmmttee.

SB 185- SEX OFFENDER/ CHI LD KI DNAPPER REGQ STRATI ON

CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi derati on of SB 185.

9:23:11 AM

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, Al aska State Legislature, said SB 185
requires sex offenders to register their emmil| addresses and
other internet identifiers. It will keep Al aska at the forefront
of the battle against sexual predators by updating the sex
of fender registry list. Al aska has one of the highest usages of
the internet in the country, but it is a way for predators to
enter our hones in search of children who may think nothing of
spendi ng hours chatting with strangers. A child may be chatting
with a sexual predator, and there is currently no way to know.
This would give law enforcement a tool to keep track of the
activities of convicted sexual predators, and to catch and
puni sh them when they break the law. This will put Al aska at the
forefront of the battle against sexual predators. Three states
are already doing it, and 17 states are considering it. The
Surviving Parents Coalition, Al aska Departnent of Public Safety,
Anchorage Police Departnent, Alaska Internet Crinmes against
Children Taskforce, and Al aska Peace Oficers Association all
support SB 185.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he intended to nake the email register
public, and now he has concerns. The Departnent of Public Safety
has requested it not be public.

9:26: 15 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she appreciates the bill and she has a bill
that mght nmerge with SB 185. It is a great idea. She asked
about the problem of people owning multiple email addresses.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI  said there have been questions about
conbating this when soneone can have 15 emnil addresses. But a
person will have to register all addresses. It is difficult, but
there are sone conplex investigatory tactics to catch internet
predators. This will assist in catching them

SENATOR BUNDE said this is a goal of any parent, but he asked
how it will work.

9: 28: 25 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said there different ways to do it. If the
information is made public, any parent can do a search if he or
she has suspicion. If it is not made public, a parent can cal

and ask if a particular email address is owned by a sexual
predator. Currently a person can see where every sexual predator
lives in the state. The way the bill is witten, the nane would

not now pop up; a person would have to call the DPS and ask.

9:29:51 AM
SENATOR BUNDE said it will still be public because a person can
call and ask about a specific email.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI sai d yes.

CHAIR MCQUI RE said an anmendnent will be offered that represents
“that tension between wanting parents to have that information

to know — to be able to call -- but having it public, the
concern is that other sex predators will then have access to
other sex predators’ emil addresses. And there’'s a whole

subcul tural thing about that.”
SENATOR BUNDE said, “W don't need internet bathhouses.”

CHAI R MCGUI RE said, “Exactly.” The mddle ground nmay be that the
list is confidential, but a parent can call and find out.

9:31: 02 AM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the sponsor is saying this could be a
tool for internet providers and internet security firns that
coul d bl ock such emails fromchildren

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI said groups |ike Facebook and MySpace are
now setting paraneters, and the goal is that those types of
sites can coordinate with DPS.

SENATOR STEVENS said it sounds like a person will be able to
actually block information comng into a hone conputer.

9:32: 28 AM

SENATOR BUNDE noted that hard drives keep information so that if
a predator was investigated and erased information, he would
still have addresses in his conputer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the information found on people's
conputers is pretty amazing. That technology is avail able.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 7, 2008



KATHY MONFREDA, Chief, Crimnal Records and Identification
Bureau, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), said she nmnanages the
sex offender registry. DPS is supportive, but the issue of
making the list public is not crystal clear — “that’s our one
concern.” The el ectronic addresses should not be public but they
should be available to law enforcenent. The federal Adam WAl sh
Act [2006] and the “Sex O fender Registration Notification Act”
addresses a lot of these issues. The federal governnent has set
up the “SMART O fice”, which stands for Sentencing, Mbonitoring,
Apprehendi ng, Registering and Tracking sex offenders. The Adam
Wal sh Act requires the state to collect electronic addresses.

The proposed guidelines will be finalized soon, and electronic
addresses will not be on a public website. Software is being
devel oped for the states so that the public can enter any emai

address and it will query the database for the entire country.

There is no guarantee that a particular address isn't an
of fender just because it isn't on the |ist.

9:35: 53 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked why it should not be nmade public.

M5. MONFREDA said she has two concerns. A public list will allow
predators to comrunicate with each other, and it could pronote
vigilantism |If the predators comunicate, they could transmt
illegal information back and forth. The government would be
giving a nmeans to these offenders to comuni cate.

SENATOR GREEN asked, “Haven’'t we already passed that by the
release of information that’s avail able about their residence,
their description, their vehicle?”

VB. MONFREDA said current |law covers addresses, not enani
addresses. She wants that clarified.

SENATOR GREEN asked if it is already public.
M5. MONFREDA repeat ed her answer.

SENATOR GREEN said she doesn’t “see the difference in an address
and the other things available.” She has never |ooked into it,
but people have told her that a sex offender |ives down the
street, “and | recognize the picture. To nme we’ ve al ready opened
that door and gone in. | don't know how we turned back, because
there’s certainly anple opportunity for contact to be made,
currently, if we’'re furnishing an address. Is there not
currently a picture?”

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 7, 2008



MS. MONFREDA said, “Yes, of course.”

9: 38: 50 AM

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said the identity of the sex offenders is already
made known through the registry, so it is not a matter of that
being nmade public “and how they mght feel.” But by providing
their emil addresses, “are we actually assisting them in
reaching out to other offenders?” She questioned the |ikelihood
of an offender getting the physical address of another and
visiting each other to share child pornography. It is far easier
to get on the internet to invite a person into a chat room to
share that information

SENATOR GREEN asked, “That’'s a bad thing?” She said she
shoul dn’t have said that, but there is anple opportunity for
people “who are so inclined” to be in touch with each other. She
is not sold on this. “I was shocked when we first allowed all
the information to go out and be public.” She was surprised at
how nuch was available. “That’s another penalty onto, perhaps, a
served penalty.” Regardless of how distasteful it is, “I don't
see why we woul d suddenly restrict the information.”

M5. MONFREDA said the concern is the convenience of being able
to communi cate instantly electronically.

DAVID SCHADE, Director, Dvision of Statew de Services, DPS,
said Ms. Monfreda has communi cat ed ever yt hi ng.

9:41:36 AM

RON TIDLER, Sergeant, Anchorage Police Departnent, said the
Alaska I1CAC [Internet Crinmes Against Children] Task Force
supports SB 185 with the sane concerns as Ms. Monfreda.

CHAIR MCQUI RE asked him to address Senator Geen’s question of
why excluding sex offender enmil addresses is inportant to
public safety.

MR. TIDLER said, as stated before, the ability for these
of fenders to get together in their own private chat roons is a
concern. There is also the concern of the public having access
to this list of sex offenders and sending anonynous harassing
emails. For law enforcenent, having the list of the emai
addresses of sex offenders will assist in investigations.

SENATOR GREEN asked the success rate of registration, and if the
information is kept up to date. Under current l|law, are the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2008



of fender registrations 100 percent effective or what? Do you
al wvays find people who have not registered?

9:44: 27 AM
M5. MONFREDA said about 90 percent of offenders are considered
conpli ant. Nonconpl i ant offender |lists are given to |aw

enforcenent to try to track them down.
SENATOR GREEN asked if any sex of fender must register.
M5. MONFREDA said the law requiring registration is specific.

SENATOR GREEN asked how the state follows up on those not
regi st ered.

M5. MONFREDA said a website posts the conpliant and nonconpli ant
of fenders. Law enforcenent seeks out nonconpliant offenders
using their |last known address.

SENATOR GREEN asked, “Regardless of whether they have actually
filled out the paperwork and regi stered, you place their nane on
the of fender |ist?”

9:46: 16 AM
M5. MONFREDA said nonconpliant convicted sex offenders wll be
shown on the website as such.

SENATOR STEVENS noted the two reasons for not making the email
address list public: it will give predators a chat room and it
may encourage vigilantism One officer said these people nmay get
harassing enails. He said he gets a |ot of harassing emails of a
political nature. “So what? So what if a parent sends a
harassing email to a known predator?”

9:47:. 24 AM
M5. MONFREDA said it wll inpact |aw enforcenent agencies when
sex offenders file conplaints for harassnent.

SENATOR STEVENS said he is not sure that harassing enails is
t hat bad.

M5. MONFREDA said it is illegal
9:48: 08 AM
CHAIR MCAQU RE said there are two anendnents, and Anendnent 1 is

the matter of the list being public or not. The DPS feels that
publishing the list would assist sexual predators in networking.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2008



The conmttee took an at-ease from 9:49:16 AMuntil 9:49:58 AM

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said the bill, if anended, will still require the
DPS to collect enmail addresses, but they will be confidential
and not on a website. Parents can call and find out if an email
is on the list, but it won't be open to other sex offenders.

SENATOR BUNDE said he is inclined to support the anmendnent. |If
the state provides an opportunity for illegal harassnent, “l can
see clever attorneys suing the state on behalf of these people.”

SENATOR GREEN asked if such lawsuits woul d be agai nst the state.
SENATOR BUNDE said yes -- if the state provided the lists.

SENATOR CGREEN said she questions that. “I don't think the
state’s the party to this.” The harasser woul d be sued.

9:52: 06 AM
CHAIR MCQUIRE said she dealt with a case of a polar bear
maul i ng, and just because it was on state |and..

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his initial intent was to mmke the
list public, and he never thought about it being a way for sex
of fenders to share child pornography. People in DPS and across
the nation recommend against a public list. He said he is open

Line 8 refers to a residence address, and that is requested by
the departnent so that work emil addresses aren’'t included.
That is probably good -- so people don’'t harass enpl oyers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said people have work emails, and “ny
understanding is that that change ... will [|imt it to just
peopl e’ s residence addresses.”

SENATOR GREEN asked if it refers to their enmmil access at the
pl ace of work.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said right now the bill requires
registering an address, “so just to clear up any confusion,
because fast food restaurants -- things like that -- they my
enpl oyee sex offenders. And | don’'t think when you go on a sex
offender list anyone wants their small business or |arge

busi ness showing up on the sex offender list.” He doesn’t think
peopl e want work emails to show up, and that is appropriate.

9:54: 43 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2008



SENATOR CGREEN asked, “Isn’t the activity we're trying to stop
al ready illegal ?”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said it is not.
SENATOR GREEN asked about pornographic material .

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said child pornography is illegal. This
bill wll require sexual predators to register their enuil
addresses. An offender could be having a chat with a 14-year-
old, posing as a 14-year-old hinself, and that is legal as |ong
as there is no enticenent.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said it is just one other layer. There wll be
of fenders using an enmmil address without registering. There are
people registering to addresses that aren’t theirs. There are
all kinds of things that can happen, but the bill addresses one
nore | ayer to get information about an i ndividual.

SENATOR BUNDE said to renenber that enticenent of children is
not a one-time incident. There is a long courting process. Wen
soneone is emailing with a child, he may not be explicit at that
point, but it could be a process.

9:56:43 AM
SENATOR GREEN asked if this makes it illegal for a sex offender
to communi cate with an unknown person

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said it does not, it only requires themto
register their email address.

SENATOR GREEN noted that it would take an intervener, like a
parent, to call the troopers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI sai d yes.
SENATOR CGREEN asked how often will that really happen.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said many parents take active rolls, and
should, in their children’s email conmuni cati ons.

9:57.:36 AM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said it will play out the way it does now. Mbthers
will notice sex offenders and share the information w th other
not hers, and they will ask who their child is talking to. It is

no different than being cleared to play with soneone. Calling
DPS wi Il be another tool for a parent, she expl ai ned.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2008



SENATOR STEVENS said he likes the second paragraph of the
sponsor statenment. “l1 think what [that paragraph] says is if
this becones a tool, there will be internet security firns that
can either block children from getting these nessages or it
could warn parents that their children are getting nessages from
sonmeone they shouldn’t be getting it from” By taking out the
public aspect, will that advantage be voi ded?

9:59: 03 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that is a good question. This is a
first step. But the information won't be private; it is just not
on an open website. The DPS could still have an arrangenment with
MySpace or Facebook to provide such information.

SENATOR STEVENS sees a disadvantage in not naking the [list
public.

SENATOR BUNDE noted that if this anmendnent passes, a parent
coul d contact the DPS about an email address.

SENATOR W ELECHOANBKI said it is not his anendnent. H's concern
is the language that says the information is confidential and
not subject to public disclosure. He has some of the sane
guestions. Maybe an attorney can clarify it. He asked if parents
can still get that information and share it wth internet
provi ders and security firmns.

SENATOR BUNDE said a responsible conpany should be able to
prevent those registered emails fromits service.

10: 01: 58 AM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnent of Law, said the bill requires sex offenders
to register email addresses and other internet identifier
information, and it nakes it illegal to fail to register. Law
enforcement doesn’'t want to create an internet chat room for
exchangi ng child pornography, because the information is so easy
to get. The intent of the amendnent is to not do that, but keep
it available to law enforcenent. So “confidential” mght not be
the right word, because the information should be available to
parents. A sex offender residential address list benefits a
nei ghbor hood, but the internet is nationw de.

10: 04: 24 AM
SENATOR GREEN asked if there is sonmewhere else in the statute
that provides for the descriptions or the qualifications of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2008



person who's requesting the information. It doesn’'t say parent
or law abiding citizens. “This too could be the other predator.”

M5. CARPENETI said she thinks there are regulations in terms of
peopl e asking for information.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said she will set aside SB 185 to make sure it is
crafted as well as it could be.

M5. MONFREDA said she agrees that the word “confidential” may
create a problem but the SMART office intends to create a
nati onal address database for parents and internet conpani es.

CHAI R MCGQUI RE asked her to | ook at Amendnent 1 before Tuesday to
make sure the bill acconplishes its goal

CHAI R MCGAUI RE wi t hdrew Anmendnent 1 and set SB 185 asi de.
SB 77-USI NG UNI ON DUES FOR PCLI TI CAL PURPGCSES

10: 06: 48 AM
CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi deration of SB 77.

SENATOR BUNDE said SB 77 is a sinple bill that provides freedom
and opportunity. It forbids the unauthorized use of agency fees
for political purposes. It is not a small issue; it is a
freedom of -choice issue. In the last ten years, unions in Al aska
have contributed over $4 mllion to political canpaigns, which
they have the right to do. He described what an agency fee is:
When he worked at the university, there was a union that charged
an agency fee of $400 or $500 per year, and if he wanted to be a
menber of the wunion, the dues were an additional $10, so the
vast bul k of noney was the agency fee. Currently, if a nenber of
a union is unhappy with the political activities of that union

there is a |aborious process to get back the agency portion of
their fee. This bill allows a union nmenber to opt in or opt out.

10: 09: 42 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said such things slip by in people's busy lives,
so it would be fairer to give people a nore conscious choice by
requiring themto opt in, rather than having them opt out after
the fact. W should not attenpt to limt political speech of
unions, but the bill provides nore choice for those who pay
agency fees to be part of a political activity.

10:10: 55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 7, 2008



SENATOR STEVENS said he agrees with Senator Bunde. He has seen
his agency fees used in opposition to him The unions tend to
support leftwing candidates, so a conservative person probably
doesn’t think it is right to use noney for a |left-Ieaning
candi date. It nakes sense for people to opt in or out.

SENATOR BUNDE noved SB 77 from conmittee wth individua
recomendati ons and attached fiscal note(s). There being no
obj ection, the notion carri ed.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair McCGQuire adjourned the neeting at 10:12: 33 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2008



